
 
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS 

3. ROLL CALL 

4. PRESENTATION 

A. Pancake Breakfast Presentation 

B. Volunteers of the Year Recognition 

C. Senior/Community Center Task Force Update 

D. Warning Sirens 

E. Tribute of Appreciation for Clerk Deborah Guthrie 

F. Tribute of Appreciation for Trustee James McCurtis 

 

5. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

6. INTERIM TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT 

7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS OF ACTIVITIES AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

9. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Communications 

B. Minutes-October 15, 2024 Regular Township Board Meeting 

C. Bills 

D. Township Board Special Meeting -Retreat-Set a Date 
E. Memorandum of Understanding with Ingham County for Fire Emergency Boat Launch 
F. Investment Report for 3rd Quarter 2024 
G. Resolution in Support of Small Business Saturday 
H. Resolution in Support of Native American History Month 
I. Placement of Delinquent Special Assessments, Delinquent Utilities, Delinquent False Alarms, 

Unpaid Lot Mowing/Code Violations and Misc. Fees on the Winter Tax Roll for 2024 

 
10. QUESTIONS FOR THE ATTORNEY 

11. HEARINGS 

12. ACTION ITEMS 

A. Williamstown Township Police Agreement 
B. PA 152 Health Care Costs 
C. Township Manager Performance Review Process 
D. CATA Redi-Ride Millage 

 
13. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS 
14. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

15. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

16. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

All comments limited to 3 minutes, unless prior approval for additional time for good cause is obtained from the Supervisor. Appointment of Supervisor Pro 
Tem and/ or Temporary Clerk if necessary. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Meridian Township Board 
by contacting: Interim Township Manager Tim Schmitt, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4258 - Ten Day Notice is Required. 

Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864 Township Hall  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

AGENDA 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
TOWNSHIP BOARD – REGULAR MEETING 

November 12, 2024 6:00 PM 









9.A

CONSENT AGENDA  
BOARD 

COMMUNICATIONS 



From: Christian & Beth Ann Bechtel <
Sent: Thursday, November 7, 2024 11:22 AM
To: SCC Taskforce < ; Board >
Subject: FYI Williamston Senior Center Open House & 2 Questions

Dear Meridian Township Senior Center Task Force Members and Board Members, 

I have some information to share and 2 questions.  First, I will ask my 2 questions.  Could
some or all of the Meridian Township Senior Center Task Force Members and Board
Members attend this upcoming December 7, 2024 Open House at the new Williamston Area
Senior Center (WASC) location?  See online newsletter weblink #3 and details below.   In
addition, Could the Meridian Township Senior Center Task Force Members and Board
Members also arrange a private informational tour of this new Williamston Area Senior
Center (WASC) location with their WASC Executive Director Julie Rudd?  Again, see Julie's
contact details below.  

Second, here is the FYI.  Per WASC Executive Director Julie Rudd, this new location for the
Williamston Area Senior Center (WASC) is a 8,500 sq. ft. building with 7 acres of land with
purchase price of $1,015,000, which is funded from the current Ingham County Elder
Services Millage ($750,000) and Williamston Area Senior Center (WASC) raised
donations/saving account ($375,000).  

In addition, per WASC Executive Director Julie Rudd, their renovations will occur in phases
over time as donations come in, and their plan is to be in this new location by the end of 2024
after their initial renovation.  Also, please note per Julie, their Senior Center hours are Monday
thru Thursday from 9am-3pm with potential to Rent their new facility location out on
weekends.  See weblinks below: 

1. Williamston Senior Center at Ingham County Board of Commissioners Meeting (04-
10-2024)
https://www.fox47news.com/neighborhoods/east-lansing-okemos/williamston-senior-center-
receives-funds-to-grow

2. Ingham County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes (04-09-2024) (pages 26-37)
(WASC Resolution Passes 8-4-3)
https://docs.ingham.org/4.9.2024%20BOC%20Minutes%20-%20Final%20(Approved).pdf

Also, FYI, here below is that online weblink for the newly posted bi-monthly newsletter for
the Williamston Senior Center which publicly announces their upcoming Open House at their
new location on Saturday, December 7, 2024 from 12-4 p.m.  Again, see below details and
this newsletter weblink, specifically pages 3, 4, and 7 detailing their upcoming December 7,
2024 Open House.

3. Williamston Senior Center Online Bi-Monthly Newsletter for November-December
2024 (pages 3, 4, & 7)
https://www.williamstonseniorcenter.org/_files/ugd/616466_5cd0c3ce09cb4af98dbbddfe2992
d223.pdf



What: New Williamston Senior Center Open House
When: Saturday, December 7, 2024 from 12:00-4:00 p.m.
Where:  New Williamston Senior Center
500 Williamston Center Road
Williamston, MI 48895
Contact: Executive Director Julie Rudd
Current Phone Number: 517-655-5173
E-Mail Address: williamstonseniorctr@gmail.com
Website: https://www.williamstonseniorcenter.org
Weekday Hours: Monday-Thursday, 9:00am-3:00pm

Thank you for your time and consideration,
Beth Bechtel
Haslett, Michigan



From: Dan Opsommer < > 
Sent: Thursday, November 7, 2024 5:51 PM
To: Charles Kotz >
Cc: Board <Board@meridian.mi.us>
Subject: RE: Meridian Township- Safe Bike Transportation - Include in packet

Hi Charles,

My apologies for the delay in responding to your email on November 1. This project was designed 
before my time at the Township, so I can’t speak to what conversations occurred during that phase 
of the project. I do know that there would be some significant challenges with adding protected bike 
lanes to the Ingham County Road Department’s (ICRD) Mount Hope Road Diet project. One 
challenge is that the ICRD has already entered into a contract with a contractor. The ICRD also likely 
has a deadline for their existing grant funding for this. I’m not certain what the terms of their grant 
are, but I can certainly inquire.

The other challenge would be funding and property rights for adding protected bike lanes. Either the 
Township, or the ICRD, would have to secure additional funding to widen the road. Widening the 
road would require moving the existing Consumers Energy utility poles, which would require 
easements from property owners (the existing Consumers Energy poles are generally right on the 
edge of the road right-of-way); moving the existing pathway, which would also likely require 
additional easements. It took the Township many decades to obtain easements from all of the 
property owners on Mount Hope Rd, which is why gaps in the pathway system were filled in over 
time. There is still one gap on the north side due to some property owners being unwilling to grant 
easements.

The Township has added 2.7 miles of 10’-wide, off-road paved trails in the past 3 years (i.e. Phases I 
and II of the MSU to Lake Lansing Trail and the southern leg of the Hartrick Okemos/Ronald J. Styka 
Memorial Trail). We had 3 miles of off-road paved trails prior to these projects being completed, so 
we have nearly doubled our miles of off-road paved trails in the past several years and are currently 
working through land acquisition for Phase III of the MSU to Lake Lansing Trail, which will provide an 
additional 2.15 miles of off-road paved trails. We are also working on the Eastern Third Regional Trail 
as well, which is longer than the MSU to Lake Lansing Trail. Here is a recent presentation that 
summarizes these projects: Friends of the Lansing River Trail - 9.18.24.pptx.  

MDOT will be demolishing the existing bridge on Grand Rive Ave between the north and south 
Meridian Road intersections in 2025 and constructing a new bridge with protected bike lanes and 7’ 
wide pedestrian sidewalks on both sides of the bridge deck.

Please let us know if you have any questions.
Thanks,
Dan Opsommer
Deputy Township Manager
Director of Public Works & Engineering opsommer@meridian.mi.us
Work: 517.853.4440 | Fax: 517.853.4099 5151 Marsh Road | Okemos, MI 48864



From: Charles Kotz < > 
Sent: Thursday, November 7, 2024 4:53 PM
To: Board <Board@meridian.mi.us>
Subject: Fwd: Meridian Township- Safe Bike Transportation - Include in packet

Dear Board-
I am forwarding an e-mail that I sent to Dan Opsommer, regarding safe biking strategies that
are being implemented in communities throughout the U. S.— My interest is in seeking to
promote the idea of the Mt. Hope road diet as a safe corridor for bike commuters.  Protected
bike lanes, (with barriers), will encourage bicyclists to use this route as an alternative to
driving their cars to MSU.  Without  protected lanes, people will, rightly, consider this too
dangerous.  Please take a look at the attachment.  Why squander this opportunity to make a
safe commuter option for bicyclists?

Sincerely,

Charles Kotz

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Charles Kotz < >
Date: November 1, 2024 at 8:33:10 AM EDT
To: Dan Opsommer < >
Subject: Bike Projects Are Benefiting Communities Nationwide |
PeopleForBikes

Hello Dan:

I am forwarding information regarding communities around the country
that are making their roads safe for bicyclists. I recall that a recently
conducted survey of Meridian Township residents showed a very high 
interest in making our community “bicycle friendly”. In fact, the 
Township Board had listed as a 2023 goal making Meridian Township 
eligible for Bronze Status certification from the League of American 
Bicyclists. I believe they gave us the lowly “honorable mention”, which 
was widely trumpeted by the Township, at that time. Since then, the 
whole idea seems to have been scrapped.



I hope that Meridian Township residents will one day be able to safely 
ride through the Township on their bicycles, without fearing for their 
lives.  The Mt. Hope road diet project should have protected bike lanes.  
What a great opportunity to finally have a safe corridor for bike 
commuters to MSU!  Please take a look at the impressive efforts that 
other communities are making.

Sincerely,

Charlie Kotz
https://www.peopleforbikes.org/news/bike-projects-benefiting-communities?
eid=135383





STATE OF MICHIGAN 
DEPARTMENT OF 

ENVIRONMENT, GREAT LAKES, AND ENERGY 
LANSING 

 

CONSTITUTION HALL • 525 WEST ALLEGAN STREET • P.O. BOX 30256 • LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909-7756 
Michigan.gov/EGLE • 800-662-9278 

GRETCHEN WHITMER 
GOVERNOR 

PHILLIP D. ROOS 
DIRECTOR 

 October 16, 2024 
 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
SUBJECT: Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) 
 Site-Specific Review Determination Letter Copy 
 
Please note that you are receiving a copy of this Site-Specific Review (SSR) 
Determination Letter because the EGLE is required to notify you when an SSR 
determination has been made in your water management area.  
 
Any questions regarding this SSR please feel to contact me by phone at 517-285-3253 
or by email at MilneJ@Michigan.gov. 
 

Sincerely, 
 

James F. Milne, Supervisor 
Water Use Assessment Unit 
Geologic Resources Management Division 
517-285-3253 

 
Enclosure 
 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
DEPARTMENT OF 

ENVIRONMENT, GREAT LAKES, AND ENERGY 
LANSING 

 

CONSTITUTION HALL • 525 WEST ALLEGAN STREET • P.O. BOX 30256 • LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909-7756 
Michigan.gov/EGLE • 800-662-9278 

GRETCHEN WHITMER 
GOVERNOR 

PHILLIP D. ROOS 
DIRECTOR 

 
October 16, 2024 

 
 
VIA EMAIL 
 
C/o Coe Emens 
Ingham County Parks Department 
121 East Maple Street 
Mason, Michigan 48854 
 
Dear Ingham County Parks Department: 
 
SUBJECT: Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) 

Site-Specific Review (SSR) 9559-202410-47 
 
This letter is in response to your request for an SSR of a proposed large quantity 
withdrawal located in Section 02 of Meridian Township, Town 04N, Range 01W, Ingham 
County.  Under Part 327, Great Lakes Preservation, of the Natural Resources and 
Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended, all new large quantity 
withdrawals are prohibited from causing an adverse resource impact (ARI) to the surface 
waters of the state. 
 
EGLE examined all reasonably available information and determined that the withdrawal is 
not likely to cause an ARI, and you are hereby authorized to proceed with making the 
withdrawal.  The withdrawal has been verified a Zone A withdrawal in the unnamed 
watershed (ID 21549) in the tributary below the Pine Lake Outlet subbasin, which is 
classified as a warm stream.  Please be advised that this determination is a presumption 
contingent upon the withdrawal conditions specified below and may be rebutted by a 
preponderance of evidence that the withdrawal has caused or is causing an ARI. 
 
Based on information provided through the Water Withdrawal Assessment Tool, and 
communication with your representative, the proposed withdrawal is registered with the 
following parameters: 
 

Source: Groundwater 
  
Location  
    Latitude: 42.764233° 
    Longitude: -84.394179° 
  
Capacity: 850 gallons per minute 
  

  



Ingham County Parks Department 
Page 2 
October 16, 2024 
 

Pumping Frequency: 
    Pumping Months: 
    Pumping Days: 
    Pumping Hours: 

Intermittent 
November - December 
7 
24 

  
Depth to the Top of the 
Screen Interval: 

30 feet 

 
The registration number is Reg.9559-202410-47; a copy of the registration receipt is 
enclosed.  Please be aware that you, or your well installer, should obtain all permits and 
authorizations required by other federal, state, and local regulations in addition to 
contacting your local environmental health department to obtain all necessary 
authorizations or permits prior to installing the irrigation well.  You are advised to require 
your well driller to inform you of any potential alterations to the construction of your 
withdrawal (e.g., well depth, screened interval, pump installation, or location).  If the actual 
construction or operation characteristics for this withdrawal vary from what is registered, 
please contact Marian Maier, Geologic Resources Management Division (GRMD), at  
517-331-2762; MaierM3@Michigan.gov or EGLE,GRMD, P.O. Box 30256, Lansing, 
Michigan 48909-7756, to obtain approval to proceed pursuant to Subsection 32706b(5) of 
Part 327. 
 
Please notify Marian Maier when this temporary construction dewatering project is 
complete so that EGLE can close the registration and adjust the total amount of available 
water in the Pine Lake Outlet subbasin. 
 
If you have questions regarding this letter, please contact me by phone at 517-285-3253 or 
by email at MilneJ@Michigan.gov. 
 

Sincerely, 

 
James F. Milne, Supervisor 
Water Use Assessment Unit 
Geologic Resources Management Division 
517-285-3253 

 
Enclosure 
cc/enc:  Jack Hughes 
 
cc: Ingham County Health Department 

Ingham County Drain Commissioner 
Ingham County Conservation District 
Ingham County Clerk 
Mid-Michigan District Health Department, Clinton County 



Ingham County Parks Department 
Page 3 
October 16, 2024 

Clinton County Drain Commissioner 
Clinton County Conservation District 
Clinton County Clerk 
Williamston Township Clerk, Ingham County 
Meridian Township Clerk, Ingham County 
City of East Lansing Clerk, Ingham County 
Bath Township Clerk, Clinton County 
Abigail Eaton, Department of Agriculture and Rural Development 
Jay Wesley, Michigan Department of Natural Resources 
Laura Mathews, EGLE 
Jeff Pierce, EGLE 
Marian Maier, EGLE 



 
 

The community of Meridian Township is in close proximity to the Michigan State Capitol and Michigan State University. The Township 
serves the community through exceptional services, beneficial amenities and an outstanding quality of life. It is a welcoming community 
that celebrates quality education, recreation and lifestyles. 
 
  

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
October 14, 2024 

 
CONTACT: Samantha Diehl, Communications Manager 

517.853.4378 | diehl@meridian.mi.us  

 

Celebrate Halloween in Meridian Township 
Several Family-Friendly Activities Offered for Season of Spooky Fun  

 
Meridian Township, MI – Throughout late October, Meridian Township will host several events and 
activities to celebrate the Halloween season with fun for the whole family. The following Halloween 
events will take place: 
 
Halloween Spooktacular (Register at recreation.meridian.mi.us) 

• Tuesday, October 29 | 5:30 pm – 7:30 pm at Marketplace on the Green (1995 Central Park 
Drive, Okemos) 

 
Families are encouraged to dress in costume and enjoy trick-or-treating, live music, dancing, games, 
crafts with CADL, pumpkin picking, pumpkin smashing, and more. The cost is $7 per child and 
registration is required. 
 
“Howl”oween Dog Pawties (Register at recreation.meridian.mi.us)

• Non-Member Dog Party - Monday, October 21 | 6:30 pm – 8:00 pm at the Large Dog Park 
(1990 Central Park Drive, Okemos) 

• Large Dog Park Party – Tuesday, October 22 | 6:30 pm – 8:00 pm at Large Dog Park 
• Small Dog Park Party – Wednesday, October 23 | 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm at the Small Dog Park 

(1960 Gaylord C. Smith Court, Haslett) 
 

Celebrate the spooky season with fellow dog lovers. Dogs can enjoy toys, treats, costumes, a dog paw-
rade, and a costume contest. Get your picture taken with a fun Halloween backdrop, play a game of 
“musical sits” and other fun activities. The cost is $5 per dog and registration is required.  
 
Police Department Halloween Open House 

• Saturday, October 26 | 10:00 am – 1:00 pm at the Police Department (5151 Marsh Road, 
Okemos) 

 
Get a behind-the-scenes look at what it takes to be a police officer! Kids will get to sit in a patrol car, 
tour the Police Department, meet McGruff the Crime Dog, and enjoy cider, donuts, and candy.  Space 
is limited, so a set number of families will be able to enter the Police Department building at a time.  
 
Trick-or-Treating  

• Thursday, October 31 | 6:00 pm – 8:00 pm  
 
Township officials remind residents to follow safety precautions if participating in Halloween-related 
activities. For more Halloween event information, visit the Meridian Township website at 
meridian.mi.us/Calendar.  
 

### 

mailto:diehl@meridian.mi.us
https://recreation.meridian.mi.us/
https://recreation.meridian.mi.us/
http://www.meridian.mi.us/Calendar


 
 

The community of Meridian Township is in close proximity to the Michigan State Capitol and Michigan State University. The Township 
serves the community through exceptional services, beneficial amenities and an outstanding quality of life. It is a welcoming community 
that celebrates quality education, recreation and lifestyles. 
 
  

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
October 23, 2024 

 
CONTACT: Deborah Guthrie, Clerk 

517.853.4300 | guthrie@meridian.mi.us 

 

  Meridian Township Clerk’s Office to Begin Early Voting on October 26 
Nine Consecutive Days of Early Voting Available for Residents 

 
Meridian Township, MI –Before Election Day on Tuesday, November 5, registered voters will have the 
opportunity to vote early at an in-person voting location. 

Below are the details for qualified, verified, and registered voters in Meridian Township who wish to 
take advantage of early voting: 

WHAT:  Early voting in Meridian Township. 

WHO:  All qualified, verified, registered voters in Meridian Township. 

WHEN:  Nine consecutive days for eight hours each day (8:00 am – 5:00 pm) beginning Saturday, 
October 26 and ending Sunday, November 3. 

WHERE:  Meridian Township Municipal Building Town Hall Room (5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, 
MI 48864). 

An early voting site operates similarly to a polling location that voters would use on Election Day. Early 
voters will be issued a ballot where they will cast their vote and insert it into the tabulator. Voters can 
also insert their absentee ballot into the vote tabulator at the early voting site.  

All voters, including voters with disabilities, have the right to vote in person at an early voting site, polling 
location, or by using a standard absentee ballot. Accessible curbside voting is available, and interested 
voters can visit www.meridian.mi.us/vote for more information. 

Voters looking to check their registration status can do so at www.michigan.gov/vote. 

### 

mailto:guthrie@meridian.mi.us
http://www.meridian.mi.us/vote
http://www.michigan.gov/vote


 

The community of Meridian Township is in close proximity to the Michigan State Capitol and Michigan State University. The Township 
serves the community through exceptional services, beneficial amenities and an outstanding quality of life. It is a welcoming community 
that celebrates quality education, recreation and lifestyles. 
  
 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
October 28, 2024 

 
CONTACT: Scott Hendrickson, Township Supervisor 

517.853.4050 | hendrickson@meridian.mi.us  

 

New Warning Sirens to Promote Safety for All Meridian Township Residents 
Outdoor Warning Siren Project Wraps Up Two Years Early 

 
Meridian Township, MI – Meridian Township has concluded its outdoor warning siren installation 
project, which brings the total number of sirens in the Township to 16. 
 
In 2018, the Meridian Township Board set a goal to include all Township residents within the 
coverage area of an outdoor warning siren by the year 2026. In 2024, the Board allotted funds to 
complete the project two years ahead of schedule. 
 
“The installation of these warning sirens marks the completion of a decade-long endeavor to provide 
total coverage to Meridian Township in the case of an emergency,” said Township Supervisor Scott 
Hendrickson. "In an emergency, every second counts and these sirens will help to save lives, giving 
our residents more warning that they need to get to safety." 
 
Meridian Township uses outdoor warning sirens to alert residents of tornadoes, flash floods, 
extremely high winds, and other severe weather conditions. This multi-year goal was put in place for 
the protection of residents previously living in areas without warning siren coverage.  
 
The outdoor warning sirens can be found throughout the Township at the following locations: 
Academic Way, Harris Nature Center, the Lodges of East Lansing, Wonch Park, Marshall Park, Bennett 
Woods Elementary, the Township Pump Building, Park Lake Road & East Lake Lansing Road, Van 
Atta Road & Grand River Avenue, Cornell Road, Green Road, Lake Lansing Road near Towar Gardens, 
North Meridian Park, and all three Meridian Township fire stations. 
 
A copy of the outdoor warning sirens map can be found at: https://www.meridian.mi.us/about-
us/departments/fire/warning-sirens. 
 
For additional information or questions about the outdoor warning sirens, please contact the 
Meridian Township Fire Department at 517.853.4700.  
 

### 

mailto:hendrickson@meridian.mi.us
https://www.meridian.mi.us/about-us/departments/fire/warning-sirens
https://www.meridian.mi.us/about-us/departments/fire/warning-sirens


 
 

The community of Meridian Township is in close proximity to the Michigan State Capitol and Michigan State University. The Township 
serves the community through exceptional services, beneficial amenities and an outstanding quality of life. It is a welcoming community 
that celebrates quality education, recreation and lifestyles. 
 
  

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
October 29, 2024 

 
CONTACT: Courtney Wisinski, Director of Parks and Recreation 

517.853.4600 | wisinski@meridian.mi.us 

 

Meridian Township Winter Farmers’ Market to Begin in November 
Winter Market to Run from November through April 

Meridian Township, MI – Shop local at the Meridian Township Farmer’s Market as it continues into 
the winter season. 

The Farmers' Market will be held OUTDOORS at the Marketplace on the Green Pavilion (1995 
Central Park Drive, Okemos) from 10:00 am to 2:00 pm on the following Saturdays in November: 

• November 2, 2024 
• November 9, 2024 
• November 16, 2024 
• November 23, 2024 

Beginning Saturday, November 30, the Farmers’ Market will move INDOORS to the JCPenney 
corridor of the Meridian Mall (1982 W. Grand River Avenue, Okemos). The market will run from 
10:00 am to 2:00 pm through April. Leading up to Christmas, the market will be held every 
Saturday. In the new year, the market will be held on the first, third, and fifth Saturdays of each 
month through the end of April.  

The indoor market days are as follows:

• November 30, 2024 
• December 7, 2024 
• December 14, 2024 
• December 21, 2024 
• January 4, 2025 
• January 18, 2025 
• February 1, 2025 

• February 15, 2025 
• March 1, 2025 
• March 15, 2025 
• March 29, 2025 
• April 5, 2025 
• April 19, 2025 

Market guests can browse products from a variety of local farms, bakeries, and kitchens, as well as 
crafts and gifts. 

Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) recipients can use their Michigan Bridge Card 
at the Farmers’ Market. Double Up Food Bucks are also accepted all year round. 

For additional information, please contact Meridian Township Farmers’ Market Manager, Tom Cary, 
at 517.712.2395 or email farmersmarket@meridian.mi.us. The complete vendor list for each week 
is located at www.meridian.mi.us/FarmersMarket and is updated before each market.  

### 

mailto:wisinski@meridian.mi.us
mailto:farmersmarket@meridian.mi.us
http://www.meridian.mi.us/FarmersMarket


 
 

The community of Meridian Township is in close proximity to the Michigan State Capitol and Michigan State University. The Township 
serves the community through exceptional services, beneficial amenities and an outstanding quality of life. It is a welcoming community 
that celebrates quality education, recreation and lifestyles. 
 
  

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
November 1, 2024 

 
CONTACT: Deborah Guthrie, Clerk 

517.853.4300 | guthrie@meridian.mi.us 

 

Meridian Township Voters’ Guide to 2024 Election Day 
Eligible Residents Encouraged to Participate in General Election 

 
Meridian Township, MI – With Election Day approaching on November 5, the Meridian Township Clerk’s Office 
is reminding residents about how to participate in the general election. 

REGISTER TO VOTE 

Any qualified resident not registered to vote can do so in-person at the Meridian Township Clerk’s Office (5151 
Marsh Road, Okemos) through Election Day until 8:00 pm with proof of eligibility and residency. Proof of eligibility 
includes being a Michigan resident at the time they register, as well as being a resident of Meridian Township for 
at least 30 days. Proof of residency includes a Michigan’s driver’s license, current utility bill, bank statement, 
paycheck or government check, or another government document. 

Voters looking to check their registration status can do so at www.michigan.gov/vote. 

VOTING OPTIONS 

1. Early Voting | Early voting is available from 8:00 am to 5:00 pm in the Town Hall Room of the Meridian 
Township Municipal Building (5151 Marsh Road, Okemos) through Sunday, November 3. All qualified 
voters can mark a ballot and deposit the ballot in a tabulator during early voting. Voters must bring a valid 
ID. If voters do not have their ID, they must sign an affidavit before casting their vote 

2. Absentee Voting | Absentee ballots must be received by 8:00 pm on Election Day to be counted. Absentee 
ballots can be tabulated at the early voting site, deposited into one of four Meridian Township drop boxes, 
or tabulated at the polls on Election Day. 

a. The deadline for voters who have lost their absentee ballot or who have not yet received their 
ballot in the mail can submit a written request to spoil that ballot and receive a new absentee 
ballot by mail is Friday, November 1 by 5:00 pm.  

b. The deadline to request an absentee ballot in person at the Clerk’s Office is Monday, November 
4 by 4:00 pm.  

c. The deadline for voters who have lost their absentee ballot or not yet received their ballot in the 
mail to submit a written request to spoil their absent voter ballot and receive a new absent voter 
ballot in person at the Clerk’s Office is Monday, November 4 by 4:00 pm.  

3. Voting In-Person on Election Day | If voting in-person on Election Day, voters must bring a valid ID to 
their voting precinct. Valid IDs on Election Day include a Michigan driver’s license or state ID, a driver’s 
license or personal ID card issued by another state, a federal, state, county, or local government-issued 
photo ID, a U.S. passport, a military ID with photo, a student ID with a photo from a high school or 
accredited institution of higher learning, or a tribal ID card with a photo. If voters do not have their ID, they 
must sign an affidavit before casting their vote. Voters can find their voting precinct at 
www.michigan.gov/vote. 

-more- 

 

mailto:guthrie@meridian.mi.us
http://www.michigan.gov/vote
http://www.michigan.gov/vote


 
 

The community of Meridian Township is in close proximity to the Michigan State Capitol and Michigan State University. The Township 
serves the community through exceptional services, beneficial amenities and an outstanding quality of life. It is a welcoming community 
that celebrates quality education, recreation and lifestyles. 
 
  

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
November 1, 2024 

 
CONTACT: Deborah Guthrie, Clerk 

517.853.4300 | guthrie@meridian.mi.us 

 

FREE CATA RIDES 

Capital Area Transportation Authority (CATA) will offer voters free rides to early voting, as well as free rides to 
polling sites on Election Day. To ride free of charge, voters simply inform their driver that they are going to vote. 
No ID or proof of voter registration is required to ride for free. 

All voters, including voters with disabilities, have the right to vote in person at an early voting site, polling location, 
or by using a standard absentee ballot. Accessible curbside voting is available, and interested voters can call 
517.853.4300 for more information. 

### 

mailto:guthrie@meridian.mi.us


Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY 

LEGAL AD NOTICE: Special Use Permit #24027 

 (Consumers Energy) 

THURSDAY, November 7, 2024 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
LEGAL NOTICE 

Special Use Permit #24027 (Consumers Energy) 
Public Hearing 

Notice is hereby given that the Director of Community Planning and Development of the 
Charter Township of Meridian will hold a public hearing on Thursday, November 7, 2024 at 
2:00 p.m. in the Meridian Municipal Building, Town Hall Room, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI, 
48864 (phone 517-853-4560) to hear all persons interested in an amended special use permit. 
Consumers Energy is proposing to expand the existing mobile pad and remove a 160 square 
foot equipment shed at their facility located at 5180 Cornell Road. The approximate 26.86 acre 
site is zoned RR (Rural Residential).  

Information may be examined at the Department of Community Planning and Development, 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan 48864-1198, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m., Monday through Friday.

Comments may be sent prior to the public hearing by writing to the Planning Commission, 
Charter Township of Meridian, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan, 48864, by phone at 
phone 517-853-4560, or by email at shorkey@meridian.mi.us. Comments may also be given 
in person at the public hearing. 

Publish: City Pulse Deborah Guthrie 
October 23, 2024 Township Clerk 

1 Affidavit, please 



9.B

CONSENT AGENDA 
PROPOSED BOARD MINUTES 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the Regular Meeting of 
October 15, 2024 as submitted.  (1)

ALTERNATE MOTION: 

Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the Regular Meeting of  
October 15, 2024 with the following amendment(s):[insert amendments]

(1)

(1)



Page 1 

 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
REGULAR MEETING TOWNSHIP BOARD -DRAFT- 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos MI 48864-1198 
517.853.4000, Township Hall Room 
Tuesday, October 15, 2024, 6:00 pm 
 
PRESENT: Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustee McCurtis, 

Trustee Wilson, Trustee Trezise and Trustee Sundland 
ABSENT: None 

STAFF: Interim Manager Schmitt, Director Gebes, Director Tithof, Chief Grillo, Director Tithof, 
and Fire Marshal Millerov 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

 
Supervisor Hendrickson called the October 15, 2024, Regular Township Board meeting to order 
at 6:00 pm.   
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS 
 
Supervisor Hendrickson led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3. ROLL CALL 
 
Clerk Guthrie called the roll of the Board.  Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer 
Deschaine, Trustee McCurtis, Trustee Wilson, Trustee Sundland and Trustee Trezise present at 
6:00 pm. 

 
4. PRESENTATION  

 
NONE 
 

5. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
NONE 
 

6. INTERIM TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT 
 
Interim Manager Schmitt gave updates about the following: 
• We have received the building permit for demolition and construction of the former Bank of 

America building near Trader Joe’s.  It will be a coffee shop with a drive thru. 
• All the local road work is wrapping up for the year. 
• All emergency sirens have been installed and we now have full coverage in the Township. 
• DEI training for Staff is taking place.  The first round occurred today. 

 
7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS OF ACTIVITIES AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

Treasurer Deschaine stated that today he attended the second meeting of the Ingham County 
Materials Management Committee and was elected Chair.  This committee will update Ingham 



Page 2 

County communities’ recycling center plans over the next three years.  He is attending the Level 
1 Assessor training this week.   
 
Trustee Wilson reported she attended the Community Resources Commission last week.  They 
are working on holiday baskets for low income residents.        
 
Clerk Guthrie stated we have received nearly 41% of the absentee ballots that were issued.  
There are four drop boxes for absentee ballots including the Haslett and Okemos Libraries, 
Municipal Building outside and inside.  Reminder to sign up at Michigan.gov/vote if you wish to 
receive e-notifications regarding your ballot.   
 
Trustee Trezise mentioned he attended the Heritage Festival last weekend.   
 
Supervisor Hendrickson remarked that on Sunday, October 6th he attended the Fire Prevention 
Open House.  Thanks to the Fire Department for the event.  Attended the Downtown 
Development Authority on October 7th and there was not quorum for the meeting.   
   

8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Trustee Wilson moved to approve the Agenda. Supported by Trustee Trezise.  
 
VOICE VOTE:  YEAS:  Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer 

Deschaine, Trustee McCurtis, Trustee Wilson, Trustee Trezise, and 
Trustee Sundland 

 
NAYS:  NONE 

 
Motion carried: 7-0 

  
9. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Supervisor Hendrickson listed the items on the agenda.   

 
Treasurer Deschaine moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Supported by Trustee 
Sundland.  
 
Trustee Wilson inquired if Okemos Schools is sharing the cost for the change in Consumers 
Energy lighting on item 9E.  Interim Manager Schmitt will follow up on the question.   
 
ROLL CALL VOTE YEAS:  Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer 

Deschaine, Trustee McCurtis, Trustee Wilson, Trustee Trezise, and 
Trustee Sundland 

 
NAYS:  NONE 

 
Motion carried: 7-0 

 
10. QUESTIONS FOR THE ATTORNEY 

 
NONE 
 

11. HEARINGS 
 



Page 3 

NONE 
 
12. ACTION ITEMS 
  

A. Township Manager National Search Process-Set a Date for Candidate Interviews & 
Reception 

Supervisor Hendrickson proposed setting a date of Tuesday, December 3rd starting at 
1:30pm to schedule public interviews for the final candidates and at 5:00pm on that day, 
schedule a public reception/meet and greet with the candidates.  The application deadline 
is October 30th.  A closed session will be held on November 26th to determine the finalists 
for the December 3rd interviews.   

 
Trustee Trezise moved to suspend the rules to set a date for interviews of the 
Township Manager. Supported by Trustee Wilson. 
 
VOICE VOTE YEAS:  Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer 

Deschaine, Trustee McCurtis, Trustee Wilson, Trustee Trezise, 
and Trustee Sundland 
 
NAYS:  NONE 

 
Motion carried: 7-0 

Trustee Trezise moved to set a date of Tuesday, December 3, 2024 starting at 1:30 
pm to schedule public interviews for the final Township Manager candidates and a 
public reception for the candidates from 5:00 pm-6:00 pm.  Supported by Treasurer 
Deschaine. 

 
Clerk Guthrie questioned what the Board would do if there are no candidates.  Supervisor 
Hendrickson mentioned the Board does meet on November 12th and in that event may 
choose to extend the deadline for applications. 
 
VOICE VOTE YEAS:  Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer 

Deschaine, Trustee McCurtis, Trustee Wilson, Trustee Trezise, 
and Trustee Sundland 
 
NAYS:  NONE 

 
Motion carried: 7-0 
 

13. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
A. Special Use Permit #24-18 - Okemos Gateway LLC – 1614 West Grand River Avenue 

 
Interim Manager Schmitt described this as a recreational marijuana facility.  The property is 
currently vacant and is 2.4 acres.  It is located just to the east of Central Park Drive on the 
north side of Grand River Avenue.  It is zoned C-2 and is in the marijuana business overlay 
district.  This applicant did receive their medical marijuana license, but did not start 
construction due to COVID-19 pandemic.  The Board did approve this applicant for a 
recreational marijuana license.  The Planning Commission did hold the public hearing in 



Page 4 

September with no comments and did vote unanimously for approval at their September 
29, 2024 Planning Commission meeting.   
 
Trustee McCurtis asked for clarification that this will be a recreational facility.  Interim 
Manager Schmitt said yes the plans are for recreational marijuana.   
 
Treasurer Deschaine asked if another applicant could apply for medical marijuana in this 
zone.  Interim Manager Schmitt stated this applicant has both the medical and recreational 
licenses.  If in the future, they gave up their medical license, the Board would need to open a 
window to accept applications for that license.  Treasurer Deschaine asked how long the 
applicant has to act on this project.  Interim Manager Schmitt said they have a maximum of 
two years to commence operations.  Discussion regarding the possible cost of construction 
being in the $2-$3 million range.   
 
Supervisor Hendrickson inquired regarding the 53 parking spaces mentioned in the Special 
Use Permit (SUP), but on the site diagram it only shows 20 spaces.  Interim Manager 
Schmitt stated it should be 20 parking spaces and he will have them update the SUP.  
 
Trustee Wilson questioned the number of parcels on the property.  Interim Manager 
Schmitt responded there are three parcels owned by the applicant, but the parcel to be 
developed is 2.4 acres.   
 
Clerk Guthrie asked if there is an existing structure on the property.  Interim Manager 
Schmitt confirmed there is currently a home on the property.  Discussion that the 
application needs to updated. 
 
Trustee McCurtis mentioned the application seems as if it was rushed and it has a lot of 
grammatical and mathematical errors.   
 
Treasurer Deschaine suggested the item be on the next Board agenda for discussion again 
with the updated application and action the following meeting. 
 
Clerk Guthrie stated the number of employees/shifts worked and hours of operation in the 
application is incomplete and needs to be updated. 
 
Trustee Wilson asked if there is any plans for outside sales or curbside and there has not 
been that request.  Discussion regarding the applicant having no odors outside of the 
building.   
 
Supervisor Hendrickson states part one of the application could use some retooling regards 
to the deficiencies discussed.  The Board agreed to bring the item back to the November 12, 
2024 for discussion again.  Interim Manager Schmitt will have the applicant update the 
application.  

 
B. PA 152 Health Care Costs 

 
Interim Manager Schmitt gave background information on PA 152 relating to the 
Township’s health care costs.  For several years, the Township has been under the hard cap 
and the Board has reallocated funds to the employees’ health savings accounts (HSA).  
Employees, over the last eight years, have received approximately $2,080 per family for 
their health savings account.  This year the Township is over the hard cap.  The Township 
now needs to consider opting out of PA 152 for $134,000 and whether or not the Board 



Page 5 

wishes to direct Staff to develop a funding mechanism for the HSAs.  Not opting out means 
the gap in funding would be passed along to the employees. 
 
Director Tithof explained Gallagher Health Benefits reviewed our health insurance as they 
do each year and discovered we were over the hard cap.  The breakdown of the employee 
costs per pay period that would be passed along to the employee would be the following:  
single $16.60, double $39.85 and family $49.81.  There is a possibility that we could fall 
under the hard cap next year, as the calculation is done annually 
 
Kathy Burns from Gallagher Health Benefits explained that PA 152 is a State law that has 
been in place since 2012.  She discussed that each year it needs to be Board discussion 
weather the Township chooses to opt out of PA 152 or go to an 80/20 plan.   
 
Discussion about why the State increase was only 0.2% for this year.  DJ MacAloon from 
Gallagher stated that this is the lowest increase since its inception and this comes following 
the highest increase of 4.1% last year.   
 
Treasurer Deschaine recused himself from the conversation because he is personally 
impacted by both items.   
 
Supervisor Hendrickson asked how much we have been under the hard cap in the last few 
years.  He asked how much we have contributed to the HSAs in the past five years and what 
the Township costs are for single, double and family premiums for 2025.  Ms. Burns from 
Gallagher will follow up on that tomorrow.   
 
Director Tithof recommended that the Board consider opting out of PA 152 and fund the 
employees’ health insurance costs at the next meeting.  The Board is in agreement.  There 
was discussion about revisiting the HSA contribution.   
 
Supervisor Hendrickson mentioned in the future if we are consistently over the hard cap, 
we might want to discuss the options with the Unions of contributing a fixed amount to the 
HSAs if employees are paying a portion of the health care premiums.   
 

C. Memorandum of Understanding with Ingham County for Fire Emergency Boat Launch 
 
Fire Marshal Millerov stated the Township would like to relocate its rescue boat to Lake 
Lansing South Park during Parks season (April-October).  If there is a water emergency, 
chances are it would be at Lake Lansing.   
 
Trustee Trezise mentioned it is a no cost agreement and a benefit for the safety of our 
community.  He sees no issue with this agreement.   
 
Supervisor Hendrickson agrees that he sees no issue with the agreement as presented and 
suggests it be brought back at the next Board meeting under consent on the agenda.   
 

D. Opioid Settlement Funds 
 
Chief Grillo presented an overview of the opioid settlement funds that came from class action 
lawsuits from large pharmaceutical distributors.  To date Meridian Township has received 
$70,000.  We will receive $258,000 over 15 years.  The funds can be used for treatment, 
equipment and education related to opioid use.  Chief described equipment uses of the funds 
could include TruNarc, a handheld narcotic identifier, GovApp to communicate with the 
public, AEDs, DARE, and outreach/tents for education.   



Page 6 

 
Trustee Wilson asked about the Department’s priorities.  Chief mentioned the handheld 
narcotic identifier and the GovApp would be the top priorities.        

Trustee Trezise asked about the fees for the GovApp.  Chief stated the app is free to download and 
the public would opt in to whatever notifications they wish to receive.  The Communications 
Department is in favor of the app.  It would be $20,000 to purchase the app and $5,000 annually to 
maintain.   
  
14. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 

Josh Nahum, Township resident, showed his support for the completion of Phase 1 and 2 of the 
MSU to Lake Lansing pathway.  He requested signage to show the entrance and exits of the 
pathway. 
 

15. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS  
 
Supervisor Hendrickson mentioned he agrees with Mr. Nahum’s comment and has reached out 
to our Staff in the Parks and Public Works Departments on the issue.   
 

16. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Trustee Wilson moved to adjourn. Seconded by Trustee McCurtis. 
 

VOICE VOTE YEAS:  Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer 
Deschaine, Trustee McCurtis, Trustee Wilson, Trustee Trezise, 
and Trustee Sundland 
 
NAYS:  NONE 
 
Motion carried: 7-0 

 
The meeting adjourned at 7:41 pm. 

 
__________________________________ 

Scott Hendrickson 
Township Supervisor 

 
__________________________________ 

Deborah Guthrie 
Township Clerk 



































 

   9. D 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

 

To:  Board Members       

From:  Scott Hendrickson, Township Supervisor 

 

Date:  November 12, 2024 

Re:  Set Special Board Meeting-November 23, 2024 

 

The Board has indicated they wish to hold a special meeting to provide an orientation for the two 

new Board members along with discussing the 2025 Township goals. 

 
 
The following motion is proposed for Board consideration: 
 

MOVE TO ADD A SPECIAL BOARD MEETING ON SATURDAY, NOVEMBER 23, 2024 AT 

10:00AM FOR THE PURPOSES OF DISCUSSING TOWNSHIP GOALS AND CONDUCTING 

A BOARD ORIENTATION.          

 
 

 



 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

9. E  

To:  Board Members 

From:  Michael R. Hamel, Fire Chief 

Date:  November 6, 2024 

Re: Memorandum of Understanding with Ingham County for Fire Emergency Boat 
Launch 

 
Attached for review is a Memorandum of Understanding to moor the Fire Department’s emergency 
boat at Ingham County’s Lake Lansing Park South in Haslett. The boat is currently stored at the 
Meridian Township Police Department. Currently, when an emergency necessitates use of the boat 
at Lake Lansing, additional personnel are required to tow the boat from Meridian Township Police 
Department to Lake Lansing; however depending on daily staffing levels, additional personnel may 
not be immediately available for this purpose. Due to the urgent nature of water emergencies at 
Lake Lansing, Ingham County will allow the department to moor the boat at Lake Lansing Park 
South. 

The Memorandum of Understanding states that Ingham County will allow the Township to moor its 
emergency boat during the park’s open season, and the Township will have 24-hour access to the 
boat while it is stored at the park. There are no storage fees or compensation payable from Meridian 
Township to Ingham County under this agreement. The agreement will renew automatically on July 
1st each year. 

 

The following motion is proposed for Board consideration: 
 

MOVE TO APPROVE THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AND AUTHORIZE THE 
TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR TO SIGN THE AGREEMENT. 

 
 
 
Attachment: Memorandum of Understanding 



 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
AND INGHAM COUNTY 

 

 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 
The Charter Township of Meridian (the “Township”) and Ingham County, on behalf of the Ingham 
County Parks Department (the “County”), hereby enter into the following Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU).  
 
WHEREAS, the Township requires a space to moor its Fire Department emergency boat on Lake 
Lansing; and  
 
WHEREAS, the County has available space for mooring the Township’s boat at Lake Lansing Park 
South, 1621 Pike Street, Haslett, MI 48840 (“Park”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the County is willing to permit the Township to moor its boat at Lake Lansing Park South 
under the terms and conditions set forth herein. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties mutually agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE I: DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES 
 

1.1 Provision of Space. The County will provide suitable space on the premises of Lake 
Lansing Park South for the Township to moor its emergency boat.  The space will be 
available during the times of year when Lake Lansing Park South is open to the 
public. During those seasons and times of the year when the Park is open, the space 
is made available to the Township for 24-hours each day. 
 

1.2 Access. The County will allow Township officials and employees free and unimpeded 
access, ingress and egress to and from the space provided to moor the Township’s 
emergency boat. Township officials shall have access to the space and the 
Township’s emergency boat even if the Park is otherwise closed to the general public 
at any particular or specific time of day or night. 

 
ARTICLE II: COMPENSATION 
 

2.1 Fees. No compensation shall be paid by the Township to the County. To the extent 
consideration is required, each Party acknowledges and accepts the mutual 
promises as provided in this MOU. 

 
ARTICLE III: MUTUAL REPRESENTATIONS OF THE TOWNSHIP AND THE COUNTY 
 

3.1 No Agency Relationship. The parties agree that the relationship between the 
Township and the County shall not be a joint venture, partnership, or other form of 
agency, and that neither party shall be the agent of the other. 

 
3.2 Liability. All liability, loss, or damage as a result of claims, demands, costs, or 

judgments arising out of or in any way related to this MOU shall be the responsibility 



Memorandum of Understanding 
Between the Charter Township of Meridian 
and Ingham County 
Page 2 of 5 

 
   

of the Township, and not the responsibility of the County, if the liability, loss, or 
damage is caused by, or arises out of, the actions or failure to act on the part of the 
Township, its officers, employees, or agents. Nothing herein shall be construed as a 
waiver of any governmental or other immunity that the Township, its officers, 
employees, or agents may have by law, statute, rule, regulation, or other authority. 

 
 All liability, loss, or damage as a result of claims, demands, costs, or judgments 

arising out of or in any way related to this MOU shall be the responsibility of the 
County, and not the responsibility of the Township, if the liability, loss, or damage is 
caused by, or arises out of, the actions or failure to act on the part of the County, its 
officers, employees or agents. Nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver of any 
governmental or other immunity that the County, its officers, employees, or agents 
may have by law, statute, rule, regulation, or other authority. 

 
ARTICLE IV: TERM AND TERMINATION 
 

4.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this MOU shall begin on July 1, 2024, and shall 
remain in effect through June 30, 2025, and shall thereafter automatically renew for 
successive one-year periods, unless terminated according to Section 4.2. 

 
4.2 Termination of Agreement. This MOU may be terminated by either party with or 

without cause upon thirty (30) calendar days’ written notification to the other party, 
or immediately upon the mutual written agreement of the parties. 

 
ARTICLE V: GENERAL TERMS 
 

5.1 Notice. Any notice given under any provision of this MOU shall have been sufficiently 
given if delivered in person or sent by registered or certified mail, postage and 
charges prepaid, or by email to the address of the Parties as set forth below. Either 
Party may change its address for purposes of this MOU by giving the other Party 
notice. Unless otherwise required by the MOU, notices under this Agreement shall 
be directed to the following persons: 

 
To County: 
 
Tim Morgan, Parks Director 
Ingham County Parks Department  
121 E. Maple St., Suite 102 
Mason, MI  48854 
tmorgan@ingham.org 

 
  



Memorandum of Understanding 
Between the Charter Township of Meridian 
and Ingham County 
Page 3 of 5 

 
   

To Township: 
 
c/o Courtney Wisinski 
Parks & Recreation Director 

   Meridian Charter Township 
   5151 Marsh Rd. 
   Okemos, MI 48864 
   wisinski@meridian.mi.us and 
   townshipboard@meridian.mi.us 
 

5.2 Severability. If any provision of this MOU is held to be illegal or unenforceable, that 
provision shall be considered severed from this MOU and shall not affect the legality 
or enforceability of the remaining provisions of this MOU unless either party is 
unable to perform without the severed provision or unless the omission would 
destroy the intent of the parties. 

 
5.3 Governing Law. This MOU shall be governed by the laws of the State of Michigan. 
 
5.4 Entire Agreement. This MOU constitutes the entire Agreement of the parties 

concerning the County providing space for mooring the Township’s emergency boat. 
This MOU shall supersede all previous communications, representations, or 
agreements, either verbal or written, between the parties concerning this subject 
matter. 

 
5.5 Waiver. Waiver of any part of this MOU shall not be a waiver of any other part, nor 

shall any waiver of a breach of this Agreement in whole or in part constitute a waiver 
of any other succeeding breach. 

 
5.6 Amendments. No amendment or modification to this MOU shall be effective unless it 

is in writing and signed by both parties. Amendments to this MOU shall be effective 
as of the date stipulated therein. 

 
5.7 Assignability. Neither party may assign its rights or obligations under this MOU 

except with the written consent of the other party. Any attempted assignment in 
violation of this provision shall be null and void. 

 
5.8 Reference Headings. Headings used in this MOU are for convenience of reference 

only and shall not be used to interpret this MOU. 
 
5.9 No Third-Party Rights. This MOU is intended solely for the benefit of the parties, and 

it shall not be construed to create any benefits for or rights in any other person or 
entity, including users of the park, employees, contractors, and their representatives. 

 



Memorandum of Understanding 
Between the Charter Township of Meridian 
and Ingham County 
Page 4 of 5 

 
   

5.10 Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to have defaulted or failed to perform 
hereunder if the party’s inability to perform or default shall have been caused by an 
event or events beyond its control and without the fault of the party, including, 
without limitation, acts of state or federal government, pandemic, embargoes, fire, 
flood, explosions, acts of God, or a public enemy, strikes, labor disputes, vandalism, 
or civil riots. 

 
5.11 Insurance. The Township shall maintain appropriate general liability insurance, 

workers' compensation insurance, automobile insurance, and professional liability 
insurance for the duration of this MOU and will provide a copy of the policy limits 
and certificates of insurance upon request of the County. 

 
5.12 Nondiscrimination. The Township, as required by law and/or Ingham County’s 

Equal Opportunity Employment/Nondiscrimination Policy, shall not discriminate 
against an employee or applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, 
conditions or privileges of employment, or a matter directly or indirectly related to 
employment because of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity or expression, disability that is unrelated to the 
individual’s ability to perform the duties of a particular job or position, height, 
weight, marital status or political affiliation. The Township shall adhere to all 
applicable Federal, State and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations and 
policies prohibiting discrimination, including, but not limited to, the following: 

 
A. The Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act, 1976 PA 453, as amended. 

 
B. The Persons with Disabilities Civil Rights Act, 1976 PA 220, as amended. 

 
C. Section 504 of the Federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, P.L. 93-112, 87 

Stat. 355, as amended, and regulations promulgated thereunder. 
 

D. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, P.L. 101-336, 104 Stat 327 
(42 USC §12101 et seq.), as amended, and regulations promulgated 
thereunder. 

 
Breach of this Section 5.12 shall be regarded as a material breach of this MOU. 

 
  



Memorandum of Understanding 
Between the Charter Township of Meridian 
and Ingham County 
Page 5 of 5 

 
   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have signed this MOU effective as of the dates set forth below. 
 

 
 COUNTY OF INGHAM   
    
 By:    
  Ryan Sebolt, Chairperson 

County Board of Commissioners 
 Date  

      
      
      
 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN    
      
 By:    
  Scott Hendrickson, Township Supervisor  Date  
      
      

 
 
 
.  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 



































 
 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

9. G 

To:  Board Members 

From: Scott Hendrickson, Township Supervisor  

Date:  November 12, 2024 

Re:  Resolution in Support of Small Business Saturday 

 

Meridian Township celebrates our local small businesses and the contributions they make to our 

local economy and community.  This year, Small Business Saturday is November 30, 2024.  The 

attached resolution has been drafted for the Township Board to give public recognition for Small 

Business Saturday.   

  
The following motion is proposed for Board consideration:   

 

MOVE TO ADOPT THE ATTACHED RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF SMALL BUSINESS 

SATURDAY. 

 

 

Attachment: 

1. Resolution in Support of Small Business Saturday 
 

 



    RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF SMALL BUSINESS SATURDAY 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham 
County, Michigan, held on the 12th day of November 2024, at 6:00 pm local time. 

 
PRESENT:    
 

 

ABSENT:    
 

The following resolution was offered by______and supported 
by__________________________________. 
 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Meridian celebrates our local small businesses and the 
contributions they make to our local economy and community; and 

 
WHEREAS, according to the United States Small Business Administration, there are 34.7 

million small businesses in the United States, small businesses represent 99.7% of firms with paid 
employees, small businesses are responsible for 61.1% of net new jobs created since 1995, and 
small businesses employ 45.9% of the employees in the private sector in the United States; and 
 

WHEREAS, 68 cents of every dollar spent at a small business in the United States stays in 
the local community and every dollar spent at small businesses creates an additional 48 cents in 
local business activity as a result of employees and local businesses purchasing local goods and 
services; and 
 

WHEREAS, 59% of US consumers were aware of Small Business Saturday and shopped or 
ate at a small, independently owned retailer or restaurant on Small Business Saturday 2023; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Meridian celebrates the contributions of all of our local 
businesses, today we remit special attention to our small business owners that create jobs, boost 
our local economy, and preserve our communities; and 
 

WHEREAS, advocacy groups, as well as public and private organizations, across the country 
have endorsed the Saturday after Thanksgiving as Small Business Saturday; and     

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER 

TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN, that November 30, 2024 will be Small 
Business Saturday. 
 
 

ADOPTED:  YEAS: 
 NAYS:    

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
)  ss 

COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Township Board of the Charter 



Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true 
and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board on the 12th 
day of November 2024. 

 
 

Deborah Guthrie, Clerk  
Charter Township of Meridian 



Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

9. H

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Board Members 

Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk

November 12, 2024

Resolution in Support of Native American Heritage Month 

Meridian Township wishes to recognize the month of November 2024 as “National Native 

American Heritage Month” and to recognize the Friday after Thanksgiving as “Native American 

Heritage Day” in accordance with section 2(10) of the Native American Heritage Day Act of 2009 

(Public Law 111–33; 123 Stat. 1923). 

The following motion is proposed for Board consideration: 

MOVE TO ADOPT THE ATTACHED RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF NATIVE AMERICAN 

HERITAGE MONTH. 

Attachment: 

1. Resolution in Support of Native American Heritage Month



 RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF NATIONAL NATIVE AMERICAN HERITAGE MONTH 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, 
Ingham County, Michigan, held on the 12th day of November 2024, at 6:00 pm local time. 

PRESENT: 

ABSENT: 

The following resolution was offered by______and supported 
by__________________________________. 

WHEREAS, from November 1- November 30, the United States celebrates National Native 
American Heritage Month; and 

WHEREAS, National Native American Heritage Month is an opportunity to consider and 
recognize the contributions of Native Americans to the history of the United States; and 

WHEREAS, Native Americans are descendants of the original, Indigenous inhabitants of 
what is now the United States; and 

WHEREAS, the Census Bureau estimates that—(1) in 2020, there were 9,666,058 
individuals of American Indian and Alaska Native descent in the United States; and (2) in 2019, 
there were 607,010 individuals of Native Hawaiian descent in the United States; and 

WHEREAS, Native Americans maintain vibrant cultures and traditions and hold a deeply 
rooted sense of community; and 

WHEREAS, Native Americans have moving stories of tragedy, triumph, and perseverance 
that need to be shared with future generations; and     

WHEREAS,  Native Americans speak and preserve Indigenous languages, which have 
contributed to the English language by being used as names of individuals and locations (i.e. 
Okemos in Meridian Township) throughout the United States; and 

WHEREAS, Congress has consistently reaffirmed support for Tribal self-governance and 
self-determination policies for Native American communities and the commitment of the United 
States to improving the lives of all Native Americans by—(1) enhancing health care and law 
enforcement resources; and (2) improving the housing and socioeconomic status of Native 
Americans; and 

WHEREAS,  Congress has recognized the contributions of the Iroquois Confederacy and the 
influence of the Iroquois Confederacy on the Founding Fathers in the drafting of the Constitution of 
the United States with the concepts of—(1) freedom of speech; (2) the separation of governmental 
powers; and (3) the system of checks and balances between the branches of government; and 

WHEREAS, with the enactment of the Native American Heritage Day Act of 2009 (Public 
Law 111–33;123 Stat. 1922), Congress—(1) reaffirmed the government-to-government 
relationship between the United States and Native American governments; and (2) recognized the 
important contributions of Native Americans to the culture of the United States; and 



WHEREAS, Native Americans have made distinct and important contributions to the United 
States and the rest of the world in many fields, including the fields of agriculture, environmental 
stewardship, wayfinding, medicine, music, dance, language, and art; and 

WHEREAS, contemporary applications of traditional knowledge systems of Native 
Americans have expanded scientific, environmental, and intercultural understanding; and 

WHEREAS, Native Americans have distinguished themselves as inventors, entrepreneurs, 
spiritual leaders, and scholars; and  

WHEREAS, The Nokomis Cultural Heritage Center is a non-profit Native American Cultural 
Center located at the Meridian Historical Village, dedicated to the preservation and presentation of 
Anishinaabe culture. For nearly two decades they have been working to teach the people of the 
State of Michigan about Anishinaabe (Ojibwa, Odawa and Potawatomi) arts, culture and history; 
and 

WHEREAS, the people of the United States, the State of Michigan and Meridian Township 

have reason to honor the great achievements and contributions of Native Americans and their 

ancestors; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN, joins with The Nokomis Cultural 

Heritage Center: 
(1) to recognize the month of November 2024 as “National Native American Heritage Month”;
(2) to recognize the Friday after Thanksgiving as “Native American Heritage Day” in accordance 
with section 2(10) of the Native American Heritage Day Act of 2009 (Public Law 111–33; 123 Stat. 
1923); and
(3) to urge the people of Meridian Township to observe National Native American Heritage Month 
and Native American Heritage Day with ongoing support, appropriate programs and activities 
including new visits to Nokomis Cultural Heritage Center.

ADOPTED:  YEAS: 
 NAYS: 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

)  ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Township Board of the Charter 
Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true 
and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board on the 12th 
day of November 2024. 

Deborah Guthrie, Clerk  
Charter Township of Meridian 



 
 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

9. I 

To:  Board Members 

From:  Phil Deschaine, Treasurer 

Date:  November 7, 2024 

Re: Placement of Delinquent Special Assessments, Delinquent Utilities, 

Delinquent False Alarms, Unpaid Lot Mowing/Code Violations and Misc. Fees 

on the Winter Tax Roll for 2024 

 

Listed below are the totals of the delinquent special assessments, delinquent utilities, delinquent 
false alarms, unpaid lot mowing fees and code violation fees that the Board must authorize for 
placement on the 2024 Winter Tax Roll for collection.  All supporting documents are on file with 
the Treasurer’s Office. 
 
 
Water:    Lake Lansing Watershed    $        7,290.69 
    Grand River Water Main    $        6,928.80 
 
Sewer:    Kansas Rd. Sanitary Sewer    $        1,304.99 
 
Sidewalks:   2021 Sidewalk      $           833.28 
    2022 Sidewalk      $        1,048.10 
     
Paving:    Powell Rd Public Improvement    $        3,606.82 
 
Drains:    Daniels Drain      $        7,748.91 
 
Delinquent Utilities:         $     17,043.35 
 
Delinquent False Alarms:        $           925.00 
 
Unpaid Lot Mowing/Etc:        $     11,821.00 
 
 
 
“Move to assess the charges identified I the staff memorandum with parcel identification 
available in the Treasurer’s Office dated November 1, 2024 for delinquent Special 
Assessments, Utility Bills, False Alarms, Nuisance, Lot Mowing/Code Violation, and Misc. 
Fees as a tax lien against the subject properties as authorized by Michigan Compiled Laws 
(MCL) 41.727, 41.728, and Meridian Township Ordinance Code Sections 58-32, 58-33, 78-
98, 78-155, 46-5, 82-27, 18-1, and 18-15” 
 
 



 
 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable,, prime community 

 

12. A 

To:  Township Board  
 
From:  Rick Grillo, Chief of Police 

 
Date:  November 8, 2024 
 
Re: Williamstown Township Police Agreement 
 
 
Meridian Township Police Department has provided law enforcement services to Williamstown 
Township since 2011. Williamstown Township continues to be pleased with the law enforcement 
services Meridian provides. The current contract is set to expire on December 31, 2024. Our 
Department met with Williamstown Township officials to discuss the contract renewal proposal to 
provide law enforcement services to Williamstown Township for 2025–2027. 

Due to past staffing issues, MTPD reduced the number of dedicated patrol hours to Williamstown 
Township to 40 hours per week.  As staffing has increased, Williamstown Township has requested 
60 hours of dedicated patrol time per week.  The new contract specifies MTPD must have a minimum 
of 37 sworn solo-performing officers to provide 60 hours of dedicated patrol time.  When MTPD is 
below 37 solo-performing officers, the number of hours of dedicated patrol decreases to 40 hours 
per week.  

Assuming MTPD has 37 solo-performing officers, the 2025–2027 contract authorizes Williamstown 
Township to compensate Meridian Township $254,991.98 for calendar year 2025, $262,641.73 for 
calendar year 2026 and $270,520.99 and calendar year 2027. Additional per hour compensation 
outside the 60 hours of weekly patrol for emergency and non-emergency responses is also included 
in the contract. The Department recommends renewal of the contract to provide police services to 
Williamstown Township. 

The following motion is proposed for Board consideration: 

MOVE TO APPROVE THE AGREEMENT TO CONTINUE PROVIDING LAW ENFORCEMENT 
SERVICES TO WILLIAMSTOWN TOWNSHIP BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2025 THROUGH 
DECEMBER 31, 2027 FOR EMERGENCY AND NON-EMERGENCY RESPONSES OUTSIDE 
THE 60 HOURS OF WEEKLY PATROL AND TO AUTHORIZE THE SUPERVISOR AND 
CLERK TO SIGN THE AGREEMENT. 

 
 
Attachment:  

1. Williamstown Township Agreement for Law Enforcement Services 
 



AGREEMENT FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT, effective January 1, 2025, is made and entered by and between 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 (“Meridian”) 

and WILLIAMSTOWN TOWNSHIP, 4990 North Zimmer Road, Williamston, MI 48895 

(“Williamstown”). 

 

 WHEREAS, Williamstown desires to secure certain law enforcement services from 

Meridian; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Meridian agrees to provide Williamstown with those law enforcement 

services as outlined below. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter contained, IT 

IS HEREBY AGREED as follows: 

  

1. Services to be Provided by Meridian.  Meridian shall provide Williamstown 

general law enforcement services by Police Officers (“Officers”) including, but not limited to, 

police patrol services, emergency and non-emergency response services to all dispatch calls, and 

additional police services, including without limitation the enforcement of applicable state statutes 

and regulations and Williamstown ordinances.  These law enforcement services shall be provided 

as follows: 

 

A. Meridian will provide Williamstown forty (40) hours of police patrol 

coverage within Williamstown per week from January 1, 2025 until March 

31, 2025, according to a variable. The schedule may be modified from time 

to time as agreed upon in writing between Meridian and Williamstown. 

 

B. Meridian will provide Williamstown sixty (60) hours of police patrol 

coverage within Williamstown per week from April 1, 2025 until December 

31, 2027, according to a variable schedule.  The schedule may be modified 

from time to time as agreed upon in writing between Meridian and 

Williamstown.  

 

C. Should staffing levels for Meridian drop below 36 solo performing officers, 

Meridian may reduce the number of hours of police patrol coverage to forty 

(40) until staffing levels exceed 36 solo performing officers at which time 

Meridian will resume sixty (60) hours of police patrol coverage.  

  

D. In the event an Officer assigned on shift to Williamstown is reassigned by 

Meridian to work outside Williamstown, and has not been replaced by 

another Officer, Williamstown shall be credited with compensatory time, 

which shall be used as mutually agreed upon by Meridian and Williamstown.  

The Williamstown Supervisor will be notified of all reassignments and the 

amount of hours taken from Williamstown. 



2 

 

E. Meridian will provide emergency and non-emergency response by Officers 

to all dispatch calls within Williamstown 24 hours per day, seven days each 

week. 

 

F. Meridian will provide Williamstown additional police services as 

summarized in the attached Exhibit A.  

 

2. Cooperation and Enforcement of Williamstown Ordinances.  Meridian and its 

Officers shall cooperate with Williamstown officials in the enforcement of Williamstown 

ordinances. Williamstown shall be responsible for the prosecution and legal costs required in 

ordinance matters and shall provide the necessary prosecutorial support to adjudicate such cases. 

 

3. Equipment to be Provided by Meridian.  Meridian shall provide and maintain at 

its expense motor vehicles to be used for police protection and patrol within Williamstown and 

any and all uniforms, weapons, radios, and general police equipment to be used by Officers 

assigned to duty in Williamstown. 

 

4. Insurance.  Meridian shall provide all insurance for the motor vehicles and Officers 

used in the performance of the services described in the Section 1 of this Agreement, including 

without limitation all automobile, liability, health care workers’ compensation and other insurance 

coverage for any Officers and vehicles assigned to duty in Williamstown.  “Insurance”, insofar as 

vehicles and Officers are concerned, means the coverage provided by Meridian as of January 1, 

2011.  If such coverage is discontinued or modified for any reason, Meridian shall notify 

Williamstown.  Meridian will add Williamstown as an additional insured on Meridian’s general 

liability and automobile policies.  Williamstown will add Meridian as an additional insured to 

Williamstown’s general liability policy. 

 

5. Compensation.  It is expressly understood that Williamstown shall pay Meridian 

the sum for calendar year depending on the agreed upon hours of police patrol coverage.  See chart 

below.  Additional per hour compensation for emergency and non-emergency response by Officers 

to all dispatch calls within Williamstown is listed below as Non Patrol Hours Rate. 

 

Patrol Hours 2025 (13%) 2026 (3%) 2027 (3%) 

80 weekly hours of 

patrol 
$339,989.29 $350188.97 $360,694.64 

60 weekly hours of 

patrol 
$254,991.98 $262,641.73 $270,520.99 

40 weekly hours of 

patrol 
$169,994.65 $175,094.49 $180,347.32 

Non Patrol Hours Rate $81.10 $83.53 $86.04 

Quarterly Maximum 

Billable Hours 
$32,440 $33,413 $34,416 

 

Meridian will invoice Williamstown quarterly at the end of each calendar quarter for the amount 

of actual emergency and non-emergency response by Officers to dispatch calls within 

Williamstown and additional police services approved by Williamstown under this Agreement 



3 

 

during that quarter.  The amounts due Meridian during the period covered by this Agreement shall 

be paid in quarterly installments, with payments due by the 15th day of the month following the 

end of a quarter.  All payments shall be made payable to Meridian and submitted to the Meridian 

Treasurer’s Office. 

 

6. Reports.  Meridian shall provide Williamstown a monthly written report 

concerning the law enforcement services provided under this Agreement. At the request of 

Williamstown, Meridian will provide an Officer or supervisory personnel to orally present reports 

not less than quarterly on law enforcement services under this Agreement to the Williamstown 

Township Board or Williamstown Police Advisory Committee. 

 

7. Employment Status of Officers Assigned to Williamstown.  The Officers 

assigned to Williamstown are and shall remain employees of Meridian and shall be under 

Meridian’s supervision, direction and control.   

 

8. Meridian Responsible for Management.  Meridian shall be solely responsible for 

the management of the Officers assigned to Williamstown under this Agreement.  Management 

shall be construed to include, but not be limited to, determining priority of investigation; 

determining what constitutes a life threatening emergency; determining the specific personnel to 

be assigned to Williamstown; determining job duties and assignments; and determining the 

adequacy of motor vehicles deployed.  Meridian will consult with Williamstown on routine or 

special matters as deemed appropriate. 

9. Emergency Removal of Officers.  Meridian reserves the right to remove any 

Officer who is otherwise assigned to Williamstown for emergencies that might exist within 

Meridian, subject to Section 1 B of this Agreement. 

 

10. Nondiscrimination.  In carrying out the terms of this Agreement, the parties shall 

adhere to all applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations and policies prohibiting 

discrimination. The parties shall not discriminate against persons to receive services under this 

Agreement or against an employee or applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, 

conditions or privileges of employment, or a matter directly or indirectly related to employment, 

because of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, sexual orientation, disability that is 

unrelated to the individual’s ability to perform the duties of a particular job or position, height, 

weight, marital status or political affiliation or beliefs.   

 

11. Agreement Does Not Affect Collective Bargaining Agreements.  The provisions 

of this Agreement shall not be construed as in any way affecting the collective bargaining 

agreement covering Meridian Officers including, but not limited to, the adding or subtracting of 

provisions. 

 

12. Communication.  It is agreed by the parties that prompt and timely resolution of 

issues and/or concerns is vital to the success of this Agreement.  Therefore, the parties agree that 

the following steps will be utilized: 

 

A. The Williamstown Supervisor will meet regularly with the Meridian Police 

Chief for the purposes of resolving issues and/or concerns. 



4 

 

 

B. The Williamstown Police Advisory Committee will meet as needed, at the 

request of the Chair of the Committee, or the Meridian Police Chief, for the 

purpose of communications and public feedback concerning activities of the 

Officers assigned to Williamstown. 

 

C. If issues and/or concerns cannot be resolved in either of the above 

mentioned forums in a timely manner, then the Williamstown Supervisor, 

Clerk and Treasurer will meet with the Meridian Police Chief and Manager 

to pursue resolution. 

 

13. Waivers.  No failure or delay on the part of any of the parties to this Agreement in 

exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof nor shall a 

single or partial exercise of any right, power or privilege preclude any other or further exercise of 

any other right, power or privilege. 

 

14. Modification of Agreement.  Modifications, amendments or waivers of any 

provision of this Agreement may be made only by the written mutual consent of the parties hereto. 

 

15. Assignment or Subcontracting.  The parties to this Agreement may not assign, 

subcontract or otherwise transfer their duties and/or obligations under this Agreement without 

express mutual written consent. 

 

16. Non-Third Party Beneficiary Contract.  This Agreement is not intended to be a 

third party beneficiary contract and confers no rights on anyone other than the parties hereto. 

 

17. Disregarding Titles.  The titles of the sections set forth in this Agreement are 

inserted for the convenience of reference only and shall be disregarded when construing or 

interpreting any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

18. Complete Agreement.  This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions 

agreed upon by the parties, and no other agreements, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter 

of this Agreement or any part thereof shall have any validity or bind any of the parties and any 

prior agreements shall be null and void. 

 

19. Agreement Period and Termination.  This Agreement shall be in effect from 

January 1, 2025, through December 31, 2027, and shall automatically renew unless either party 

provides one hundred eighty (180) days prior written notice of nonrenewal.  Either Meridian or 

Williamstown may, with or without cause, terminate this Agreement at any time upon one hundred 

eighty (180) days prior written notice to the other party.  In the event this Agreement is terminated 

prior to December 31, 2027, Williamstown shall pay Meridian as set forth in Section 5 the total 

sum due for services performed by the Officers assigned to Williamstown up to the effective date 

of termination. 

   

20. Invalid Provisions.  If any clause or provision of this Agreement is rendered 

invalid or unenforceable because of any State or Federal statute or regulation or ruling by any 



5 

 

tribunal of competent jurisdiction, that clause or provision shall be null and void, and any such 

invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remainder of this 

Agreement.  It shall be considered to be deleted and the remainder of this Agreement shall not be 

affected thereby.  Where the deletion of the invalid provision would result in the illegality and/or 

unenforceability of this Agreement, this Agreement shall be considered to have terminated as of 

the date in which the provision was rendered invalid or unenforceable. 

 

21. Certification of Authority to Sign Agreement.  The people signing on behalf of 

the parties certify by their signatures that they are duly authorized to sign this Agreement on behalf 

of said parties and that this Agreement has been authorized by said parties. 

 

 THE FOLLOWING AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES OF THE PARTIES HAVE 

EXECUTED THIS AGREEMENT AS OF THE DAY AND YEAR FIRST ABOVE WRITTEN. 

 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 

 

By:_____________________     __________ 

                 Supervisor                         Date 

 

By:_____________________     __________ 

                    Clerk                               Date 

  

 WILLIAMSTOWN TOWNSHIP 

 

 

By:_____________________     __________ 

                 Supervisor                         Date 

 

By:_____________________    __________ 

                 Clerk                                  Date 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Meridian currently provides the following additional police services to its residents. These services 

will also be provided to Williamstown residents, subject to Meridian’s decision to continue to 

provide these services to its residents. 

 

 Investigations Unit – Five investigators available for major crimes and specialized 

investigations. 

 Sex Offender Registry – Monitor and verify sex offender registrations. 

 Court Service Officer – This position, assigned to investigations, processes warrant 

requests keeping patrol officers on the road. 

 Records Unit – Civilian staff transcribes reports, responds to requests for reports and 

are keepers of all records.  Records staff members are trained to respond to freedom of 

information requests. 

 Training – All sworn officers receive nearly 40 hours of in-service training each year.  

Additionally, many officers receive specialized training off site. 

 Crime Scene Investigators receive additional training to process crime scenes. 

 Accident Investigation Team – Several officers have received additional training to 

investigate more serious and fatal traffic crashes. 

 Ingham Regional Special Response Team – A minimum of four officers are assigned 

to the IRSRT as operators to assist with high risk operations and two officers as 

negotiators  



6 

 

 In-Car Video – Each patrol vehicle is equipped with video recording equipment used 

for its evidentiary value and verifying officer performance. 

 Body worn cameras for each officer. 

 Tasers for each officer, giving us an intermediary tool for less lethal force 

 Police canines – Our canine program assists road patrol with search and rescue, 

tracking of offenders, locating property and other items, community engagement, 

narcotics investigations, and as a less lethal force option when necessary 

 Supervision – Patrol supervisor on duty at all times. 

 Community Policing – Individual officers are assigned specific neighborhoods to 

develop communication between the Department and the community. 

 Neighborhood Watch – The Department encourages neighborhoods to be active in 

crime prevention initiates by organizing neighborhoods to be eyes and ears. 

 Basic Life Support– Officers are licensed at a Basic Life Support level.  Officers are 

available to respond to medical calls to assist NIESA ambulance. Our officers may 

have a quicker response to begin treatment or may be available when the ambulance is 

unavailable. 

 Automatic External Defibrillators – AEDs are carried in patrol cars. 

 Naloxone – Officers carry Naloxone and are trained to administer the drug in the case 

of a suspected opioid overdose. 

 Speed Signs and a Speed Trailer – Multiple speed signs can be deployed on roadways 

to educate the public on speed limits as well as conduct speed surveys to determine if / 

when motorists are speeding in certain areas 

 Property Checks – Officers will check residential properties for security when the 

homeowner is away on vacation on request. 

 Senior Watch Program – Seniors and others living alone who are enrolled in this 

program are contacted by the police department either in person or by phone regularly 

to ensure they are safe.   

 Citizens Academy and Youth Academy – Each academy is held once per year allowing 

citizens to learn more about the Department and law enforcement in the community. 

 Community Leader Meeting – Community leader meetings are held three times a year.  

It is an opportunity for police and our community to discuss community issues, crimes 

and trends. 

 National Night Out – This celebration, held the first Tuesday in August, encourages 

citizens to be organized against crime. Neighborhoods are encouraged to have 

neighborhood activities including ice cream socials, picnics, or, at a minimum, have 

their porch light on and meet their neighbors. 

 Traffic Initiative – The Department takes an active effort in reducing traffic crashes, 

thus, reducing injuries and fatalities. 

 Telehealth Program – Individuals experiencing mental health crisis can be put in touch 

directly with a counselor from Community Mental Health for immediate assistance 

using our iPads. 

 MLEAC Accredited Agency – Meridian Township Police Department is the 19th 

agency in the state and the first agency in mid-Michigan to achieve recognition as an 

accredited agency and retains this status on an annual basis. 



7 

 

 Citizen Satisfaction Surveys – Monthly surveys and digital surveys are sent to 

individuals who have used police services.  Each one is reviewed by the Chief.  The 

surveys provide valuable feedback on the Department’s performance. 

 Special Response Team – The Department participates with East Lansing, Michigan 

State University and other departments on a special response tactical team for special 

response situations.  This would be available to Williamstown Township. 

 Written Reports – Criminal reports are completed in the patrol vehicle on an in-car 

computer.  This reduces the amount of time the officer spends in the office. 

 Citizen Complaint Process – All citizen complaints are thoroughly investigated with a 

follow-up correspondence to the citizen.  Appropriate action is taken if necessary.  Most 

citizen complaints are not sustained or are unfounded. 

 Patrol officers are encouraged to do their own follow-up investigations when possible.  

Neighborhoods are canvassed on serious crimes.  Patrol supervisors review 

investigative efforts to ensure thorough investigations are conducted. 

 The Department has used satellite offices and would use Williamstown Township’s 

office as a location to meet with residents. 

 Rave Emergency Alerts– Technology used to inform citizens of crime, crime trends, 

community alerts, and bulletins. 
 

 



 
 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable,, prime community 

 

12. B 

To:  Township Board  
 
From:  Abigail Tithof, Human Resources Director 

 
Date:  November 12, 2024 
 
Re: PA152 Exemption Resolution 
 
 
As a follow up to the Township employee benefits discussion held by the Township Board on 

October 15, 2024, the following motion has been prepared for the Board’s consideration:  

MOVE TO APPROVE THE RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE ANNUAL EXEMPTION OPTION 

(Section 8) AS SET FORTH IN 2011 PUBLIC ACT 152, THE PUBLICLY FUNDED HEALTH 

INSURANCE CONTRIBUTION ACT 

Attachment: 

1. November 12, 2024 PA152 Exemption Resolution  



November 12, 2024  
Employee Benefits PA152 Exemption 

 
 

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE ANNUAL EXEMPTION OPTION AS SET FORTH IN 2011 
PUBLIC ACT 152, THE PUBLICLY FUNDED HEALTH INSURANCE CONTRIBUTION ACT 
 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham 
County, Michigan, held at 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 on the 12th day of November 2024, at 
6:00 p.m., Local Time. 
 

  PRESENT: ___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
      __________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
ABSENT: __________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 
The following resolution was offered by _________________ and supported by ___________________. 

 
WHEREAS, 2011 Public Act 152 (the “Act”) was passed by the State Legislature and signed 
by the Governor on September 24, 2011; 

 
WHEREAS, the Act contains three options for complying with the requirements of the Act; 

 
WHEREAS, the three options are as follows: 

 
1) Section 3 - “Hard Caps” Option - limits a public employer’s total annual health care 

costs for employees based on coverage levels, as defined in the Act; 
2) Section 4 - “80%/20%” Option - limits a public employer’s share of total annual 

health care costs to not more than 80%. This option requires an annual majority vote 
of the governing body; 

3) Section 8 - “Exemption” Option - a local unit of government, as defined in the Act, 
may exempt itself from the requirements of the Act by an annual 2/3 vote of the 
governing body; 

 
WHEREAS, Meridian Charter Township has decided to adopt the annual Exemption option 
as its choice of compliance under the Act; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Meridian Charter Township elects to comply 
with the requirements of 2011 Public Act 152, the Publicly Funded Health Insurance Contribution 
Act, by adopting the annual Exemption option for the medical benefit plan coverage year January 1, 
2025 through December 31, 2025. 
 
ADOPTED: YEAS: __________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
  __________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   
   NAYS: __________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 
 
 



Resolution to Approve 
Employee Benefits PA152 Exemption 

Page 2 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Township Board of the Charter 
Township Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and a 
complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board on the 12th day of 
November, 2024. 
 
 
       ______________________________   
       Deborah Guthrie 
       Township Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



To: Township Board 

From: Scott Hendrickson, Township Supervisor 

Date: November 12, 2024 

Re: Manager Review Process 

12. C

Among the many policies and procedures that could use an update is the manner by which the Township 

Manager receives an annual performance review. In the past, the Board each completed a short form and 

provided commentary on the Manager's performance that is summarized by the Township Supervisor and 

presented. This process does not include any input from the Staff, who ultimately and operationally work 

with the Township Manager to achieve the ends of the Township's goals. 

As such, I have begun the process of crafting a more thorough review process that includes evaluations from 

staff as well as evaluations from Board Members and a draft of the policy can be found in this agenda item. 

The basic premise is that a number of employees will be chosen randomly each September and will complete 

an evaluation form of the Township Manager. This is to be done anonymously and provided to the HR 

Director who will present the forms to the Board prior to their completion of the evaluation of the Manager. 

The Township Board will be able to use these documents as well as their own experiences with Manager to 

complete their evaluation forms (which may also be getting a face lift during this process) and send them in 

to be compiled. 

Rather than summarizing, the Township Supervisor will draft an executive summary of the reviews and the 

entire packet (including the Executive Summary, the Manager Review Document from each Board Member, 

and the Employee's Reviews) will be presented for final approval by the Board in November for their 

consideration. 

I believe this is a more transparent review process, which includes employee feedback, reduces the 

possibility that remarks or critiques will be misconstrued during summarization, and gives the Board 

increased information from the staff prior to their review of the Township Manager. 

I present this draft for the Board's consideration with the hope to gain insight into whether the Board 

approves of the direction, and with the hope that we might move this forward for implementation as early as 

this year. 

The following motion has been prepared for the Board’s consideration: 

MOVE TO APPROVE THE MANAGER REVIEW PROCESS AS PRESENTED AND ADOPT THE 

TOWNSHIP MANAGER REVIEW FORM AS PRESENTED. 

Attachment: 

1.  Township Manager Performance Review Process and Evaluation Form

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable,, prime community 



Proposed Manager Review Process 

OVERVIEW 

The goal of this process is to obtain the most accurate review possible of the Township Manager’s 

performance over a year-long period. It is the Board’s wish to do so in such a way that incorporates the 

reviews of the Board Members, and the feedback of the Township Manager’s direct reports, other 

Township employees, and Board and Commission volunteers. 

The deadline to complete the process of reviewing the Township Manager’s performance should be on 

or before November 20th each year so that the current Board can review the managers performance in 

each of the years reviewed. Doing so will also give Boards time to consume the final report and consider 

its findings during years in which the Manager’s contract must be negotiated or renegotiated. 

Parties involved in the execution of this process will include the HR director, the Township Supervisor, 

members of the Township Board, and any union employees, non-union employees, and Boards and 

Commission volunteers selected to provide feedback on the performance of the Manager. 

PROCEDURAL OUTLINE 

1. One week prior to the second Township Board Meeting in September, the Director of Human

Resources shall furnish to the Township Supervisor lists of employees and/or Boards and

Commissions Volunteers that have been anonymized and assigned numbers.

a. NOTE: If possible, if an employee/volunteer has reviewed the Township Manager in the

last 4 years, they are to be excluded from the list of possible reviewers.

b. The lists shall be subdivided as follows:

i. Boards and Commission Members

1. NOTE: This is to exclude the members of the Township Board

ii. Non-Union Director Employees (MTEAM Members)

1. NOTE: This is to exclude the Township Manager

iii. Administrative Professionals Bargaining Unit Members (TPOAM)

iv. Non-Supervisory Professionals Bargaining Unit Members (TPOAM) &

Supervisory Professionals Bargaining Unit Members (TPOAM)

v. Public Works and Parks and Recreation Bargaining Unit Members (TPOAM)

vi. Police Officers Bargaining Unit Members (POAM)

vii. Police Command Bargaining Unit Members (CCLP)

viii. Firefighters Bargaining Unit Members (IAFF)

2. From these lists, the following number of anonymized respondents will be selected by the

Township Supervisor:

a. Boards and Commissions: 2

b. Non-Union Directors: 2

c. Administrative Professionals: 1

d. Non-Supervisory Professionals: 2

e. Professional Supervisors: 1

f. Public Works and Parks and Recreation: 2

g. Police Officers: 2

h. Police Command: 1



i. Firefighters: 2

3. The Director of Human Resources will notify the selected employees of their selection as those

who will offer feedback and will provide the Township Manager/Employee Review Form, as

approved by the Township Board.

a. NOTE: If an employee is unavailable due to leave of absence or other compelling reason,

another employee will be selected by the Township Supervisor from the anonymized list

of the same group.

4. The selected employees shall complete their Township Manager/Employee Review Form and

return it to the Director of Human Resources by the first meeting of the Township Board in

October.

5. The Director of Human Resources will provide the raw responses to the Township Supervisor

and retain a copy.

6. The Township Supervisor shall collate the responses and provide them to the Township Board

and copy the Director of Human Resources prior to the Board’s second meeting in October.

a. NOTE: The Township Supervisor may format the results and responses but may not alter

them.

7. The Director of Human Resources shall place on the agenda of the Township Board’s second

meeting in October a discussion to review the Manager Review Process and shall provide the

Township Board/Manager Review Form, as approved by the Township Board, and the employee

responses, as received from the Supervisor.

8. By November 1st, the Township Board shall complete their Township Board/Manager Review

Forms and return them to the Township Supervisor and the Director of Human Resources.

9. The Township Supervisor shall collate the responses and may format the results and responses

but may not alter them.

10. The Township Supervisor shall write an Executive Summary of the Township Manager Review

that incorporates the reviews of the employees, Boards and Commissions members, and

Township Board Members.

11. The Township Supervisor shall place on the agenda of the Township Board’s first meeting in

November an item for discussion and shall present the compiled Township Manager Review.

a. This agenda item will include a packet containing the following:

i. The Supervisor’s Executive Summary

ii. The Township Board/Manager Review Forms from each Board Member

iii. The Township Manager/Employee Review Forms from each reviewer

12. The Township Supervisor shall place on the agenda of the Township Board’s second meeting in

November an item for action, and the Board shall on whether to accept the Township

Manager’s Annual Review.



Completed Evaluation due to HR by: __________________________ 

Date Evaluation Received in HR:  ____________________ 

Township Manager Performance Evaluation 

Name of Township Manager:  ___________________________________________________________ 

Evaluator Name & Signature: ___________________________________________________________ 

Evaluation Period: _ ___________to ______________________________________    

INSTRUCTIONS 

This evaluation form contains ten categories of evaluation criteria. Each category contains 
a statement to describe a behavior standard in that category. For each statement, use the 
following scale to indicate your rating of the township manager’s performance. 

5 = Excellent (almost always exceeds the performance standard)  
4 = Above average (generally exceeds the performance standard)  
3 = Average (generally meets the performance standard) 
2 = Below average (usually does not meet the performance standard) 
1 = Poor (rarely meets the performance standard) 

Any item left blank will be interpreted as a score of “3 = Average” 

This evaluation form also contains a provision for entering narrative comments, including 
an opportunity to enter responses to specific questions and an opportunity to list any 
comments you believe appropriate and pertinent to the rating period.  

 Leave all pages of this evaluation form attached.
 Initial each page.
 Sign and date the cover page.
 On the date space of the cover page, enter the date the evaluation form was

submitted.

All evaluations presented prior to the deadline identified on this cover page will be 
summarized into a performance evaluation to be presented by the Township Board to the 
Township Manager as part of the agenda for the meeting dated ______________________________. 



Page 2 of 5 Initials   

 

 

 

 

PERFORMANCE CATEGORIES & SCORING 
 
 
1. INDIVIDUAL CHARACTERISTICS 

 Diligent and thorough in the discharge of duties, “self-starter” 

 Exercises good judgment consistently 

 Displays enthusiasm, cooperation, and adaptability 

 Mental and physical stamina appropriate for the position 

 Exhibits composure, appearance and attitude appropriate for the position 
 
Add the values from above and enter the subtotal  ÷ 5 =  score for this category 
 
 
2. PROFESSIONAL SKILLS AND STATUS 
 Maintains knowledge of current developments affecting the practice of local government 

management 

 Demonstrates a capacity for innovation and creativity 

 Anticipates and analyzes problems to develop effective approaches for solving them 

 Willing to try new ideas proposed by governing body members and/or staff 

 Sets a professional example by handling affairs of the public office in a fair and impartial 

manner 

Add the values from above and enter the subtotal  ÷ 5 =  score for this category 
 

 
 
3. RELATIONS ELECTED MEMBERS OF THE GOVERNING BODY 
 Carries out directives of the body as a whole as opposed to those of any one member or 

group 

 Sets meeting agendas that reflect the guidance of the governing body and avoids 

unnecessary involvement in administrative actions 

 Disseminates complete and accurate information equally to all members in a timely manner 

 Assists by facilitating decision making without usurping authority 

 Responds well to requests, advice, and constructive criticism 
 
Add the values from above and enter the subtotal  ÷ 5 =  score for this category 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 5 Initials 

4. POLICY EXECUTION

Implements governing body actions in accordance with the intent of board

Supports the actions of the governing body after a decision has been reached, both inside 

and outside the organization

Understands, supports, and enforces local government’s laws, policies, and ordinances 

Reviews ordinance and policy procedures periodically to suggest improvements to their 

effectiveness

Offers workable alternatives to the governing body for changes in law or policy when an 

existing policy or ordinance is no longer practical

Add the values from above and enter the subtotal ÷ 5 = score for this category 

5. REPORTING
Provides regular information and reports to the governing body concerning matters of 

importance to the local government, using the township charter as guide

Responds in a timely manner to requests from the governing body for special reports 

Takes the initiative to provide information, advice, and recommendations to the governing 

body on matters that are non-routine and not administrative in nature

Reports produced by the manager are accurate, comprehensive, concise and written to their 

intended audience

Produces and handles reports in a way to convey the message that affairs of the 

organization are open to public scrutiny

Add the values from above and enter the subtotal ÷ 5 = score for this category 

6. CITIZEN RELATIONS
Responsive to requests from citizens

Demonstrates a dedication to service to the community and its citizens

Maintains a nonpartisan approach in dealing with the news media

Meets with and listens to members of the community to discuss their concerns and strives

to understand their interests

Gives an appropriate effort to maintain citizen satisfaction with Township services

Add the values from above and enter the subtotal ÷ 5 = score for this category 



Page 4 of 5 Initials 

7. STAFFING

Recruits and retains competent personnel for staff positions

Applies an appropriate level of supervision to improve any areas of substandard

performance

Stays accurately informed and appropriately concerned about employee relations

Professionally manages the compensation and benefits plan

Promotes training and development opportunities for employees at all levels of the

organization

Add the values from above and enter the subtotal ÷ 5 = score for this category 

8. SUPERVISION

Encourages heads of departments to make decisions within their jurisdictions with minimal

Township manager involvement, yet maintains general control of operations by providing

the right amount of communication to the staff

Instills confidence and promotes initiative in subordinates through supportive rather than

restrictive controls for their programs while still monitoring operations at the department

level

Develops and maintains a friendly and informal relationship with the staff and work force

in general, yet maintains the professional dignity of the Township Manager’s office

Sustains or improves staff performance by evaluating the performance of staff members at

least annually, setting goals and objectives for them, periodically assessing their progress,

and providing appropriate feedback

Encourages teamwork, innovation, and effective problem-solving among the staff members

Add the values from above and enter the subtotal ÷ 5 = score for this category 

9. FISCAL MANAGEMENT
Prepares a balanced budget to provide services at a level directed by board

Makes the best possible use of available funds, conscious of the need to operate the local 

government efficiently and effectively

Prepares a budget and budgetary recommendations in an intelligent and accessible format 

Ensures actions and decisions reflect an appropriate level of responsibility for financial 

planning and accountability

Appropriately monitors and manages fiscal activities of the organization

Add the values from above and enter the subtotal ÷ 5 = score for this category 



Page 5 of 5 Initials 

10. COMMUNITY

Shares responsibility for addressing the difficult issues facing the township

Avoids unnecessary controversy

Cooperates with neighboring communities and the county

Helps the board address future needs and develop adequate plans to address long term

trends

Cooperates with other regional, state and federal government agencies

Add the values from above and enter the subtotal ÷ 5 = score for this category 

Narrative Evaluation 

a. What would you identify as the manager’s strengths, expressed in terms of results achieved
during the rating period?

b. What performance areas would you identify as most critical for improvement?

c. What constructive suggestions or assistance can you offer the manager to enhance
performance?

d. What other comments do you have for the manager, including priorities, expectations, goals or
objectives for the new rating period?
















	Agenda
	9. A-Communications
	9. B-Minutes
	9. C-Bills
	9. D-Special Meeting
	9. E-MOU Ingham County
	9. F-Investment Report
	9.G-Small Business Saturday
	9.H-Native American History Month
	9I-Winter Tax Roll
	12.A-Williamstown Township Police Agreement
	12.B-PA152
	12.C-Manager Review Process



